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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Today we are

          3  discussing Intro. No. 409, which is regarding child

          4  support collection agencies, a bill that we will be

          5  discussing in regards of regulation. Welcome.

          6                 Today the Women's Issues Committee

          7  will take a second look at Intro. No. 409A.  Intro.

          8  No. 409A is a bill drafted by the Speaker, myself

          9  and Council Member Gioia. This bill clarifies and

         10  expands existing regulations regarding the practices

         11  of debt collection agencies that collect unpaid

         12  orders of child support.  This bill creates

         13  disclosure requirements for these agencies.

         14                 As I stated in our first hearing in

         15  May, private companies that offer to collect child

         16  support may provide a need, however, for various

         17  reasons child support collection agencies are not

         18  explicitly covered by existing federal and local

         19  consumer protection laws.  And I have heard reports

         20  of a variety of abusive collection agencies

         21  practices such as agencies bullying grandparents

         22  into disclosing their charge card account numbers

         23  and misleading parents and employers into believing

         24  that they are dealing with the government.

         25                 Single parents and children are a
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          2  vulnerable group.  This legislation is not intended

          3  to prevent child support collection agencies from

          4  providing our children and families with a

          5  legitimate service, but is intended to make sure

          6  that all the basic ground rules for this industry is

          7  followed.

          8                 I would like to take this moment

          9  first to introduce my colleagues that have come

         10  forth and is on the Women's Issues Committee,

         11  Council Member Gentile and Council Member Barron.

         12                 Today we'll here from several

         13  speakers on this issue.  This will be the first of

         14  many hearings that we will have before we actually

         15  have a vote.  We will start with ACES, Debbie Ecker

         16  who is from ACES.  Before we start we'll start with

         17  Consumer Affairs first.  Let's hear from Consumer

         18  Affairs first.  Is Andrew available?  Hi, Andrew,

         19  come forward, New York City Government Affairs

         20  Department, who'll give us a word on where we are

         21  with this legislation. We've been working very

         22  closely with your agency to try to enforce more

         23  stricter regulations on the child support industry,

         24  as we have found it has become sort of a predatory

         25  industry and we look forward to working with you in
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          2  the future on local law, the Intro. 409A.  Can you

          3  say your name and your affiliation for the record?

          4                 MR. EILER: Sure.  Good morning.  I'm

          5  Andrew Eiler from the -- Director of Legislation for

          6  the Department of Consumer Affairs.  Commissioner

          7  Dykstra asked me to thank you for this opportunity

          8  to comment on Intro. 409A that would require the

          9  licensing and it would regulate the practices of

         10  collection agencies that collect child support

         11  payments.

         12                 Commissioner Dykstra had already

         13  supported the objective legislation when the

         14  committee held its first hearing on May 2nd, 2003.

         15  When I then appeared before you I described several

         16  revisions the Commissioner believed would strengthen

         17  the bill.

         18                 Commissioner Dykstra would like to

         19  acknowledge and applaud the spirit of cooperation of

         20  the committee and Council staff which enabled DCA

         21  and the administration to work out the excellent

         22  version -- revisions that have been included in the

         23  bill you are now considering.

         24                 The Commissioner wholeheartedly

         25  supports your favorable action on the bill.
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          2                 Thank you again for the opportunity

          3  to comment.  I'd be pleased to answer any questions

          4  you have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you for

          6  that presentation, as we have generated a lot of

          7  information and questions from our first hearing in

          8  May.  This was actually sparked by the interest of

          9  Council Member Gentile who worked very closely with

         10  the Consumer Affairs Agency, as well as with the

         11  federal government, I'm sure he'll have several

         12  questions here.

         13                 Let me just start by asking you,

         14  exactly, if you can give an estimate or the sense of

         15  how many child support collection agencies actually

         16  operate in New York.

         17                 MR. EILER:  We don't have a really

         18  good figure because we don't regulate them now, but

         19  we talked to Council staff and the estimates are

         20  somewhere in the range of 12 to 30.  That's not to

         21  say new ones, because it is possible that existing

         22  collection agencies are also collecting child

         23  support payments but they don't have to be licensed

         24  for that activity.  So that how many new ones there

         25  would be, we really don't have an idea.  Some of
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          2  them are on the internet which may be a little

          3  problematic.  In any case, that's the best guess

          4  that we have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  So anyone at

          6  this particular moment can come up with an agency,

          7  can say that they want -- if they 're a lawyer they

          8  want to begin to open up an arm of their agency,

          9  this is we're doing child support, and there are no

         10  regulations and there's no sort of application?

         11  There's no notification they need to send to you at

         12  all?

         13                 MR. EILER:  Well, right now we

         14  license and regulate collection agencies.  The way

         15  the law is structured today is that it covers

         16  collection agencies that collect debts, consumer

         17  debts, on behalf of businesses.  This expands the

         18  definition of collection agency to include the

         19  collection of child support payments, which is not

         20  included as a consumer debt under the current law.

         21  So it just expands the range of activities that

         22  become licensable for people engaging in collection

         23  practices.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Can you give us

         25  a little history, if you can, on -- I was talking to
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          2  my counsel about this and, you know, we went through

          3  the entire predatory industry in terms of with the

          4  Attorney General and we spoke about credit cards

          5  being a predator, how at some point in the federal

          6  legislation the loophole that allowed child support

          7  agencies to sort of get under this or go over this

          8   --

          9                 MR. EILER:  Well, that's it, because

         10  all the laws dealing with credit practices deal with

         11  consumer debts, that is expenditures in a credit for

         12  household -- personal household purposes that in a

         13  collection industry it is debts being collected by

         14  businesses from consumers.  The definition of all

         15  this is based upon businesses that collect consumer

         16  debts for businesses.  So individual child support

         17  payments don't simply fit under that definition,

         18  therefore, they're not covered by the legislation

         19  and the laws that have been developed for protecting

         20  individual consumers from predatory debt collection

         21  practices of people who are collecting money for

         22  businesses.  It's just a different kind of activity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  You know why I

         24  say that?  Because we just dealt with some companies

         25  in New York City that on the foreclosure rate and
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          2  that made me think of child support agencies,

          3  because we really came down on some very major

          4  companies in terms of what they did in terms of

          5  providing mortgages to average Joes.  We put

          6  legislation there.  We rallied and now there is a

          7  big move that we hope is going to incur from this

          8  piece of legislation that we're doing to really

          9  focus on the fact there are large companies like

         10  this that are, you know, weaning down on some of the

         11  smaller people.

         12                 MR. EILER:  But again, that relates

         13  to the practice of the business relating to the

         14  individual as a consumer who's using the service for

         15  the purpose of individual consumption, that is for

         16  personal family or household purposes.  Although the

         17  individual consumer collecting child support

         18  payments is using the payment for that purpose, it's

         19  not a commercial transaction.  Basically consumer

         20  protection legislation in the past, I mean up to

         21  right now, has essentially looked at the commercial

         22  transactions from the standpoint of the individual

         23  buyer, protecting the individual buyer in the

         24  commercial context. Child support payments really

         25  are not in the commercial context in that sense.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Unbelievable.

          3  As I ride -- I saw an advertisement on the bus this

          4  morning again for an agency.  We should have written

          5  that number down and called them to see exactly

          6  where they were.

          7                 Let me just ask you another question.

          8    Do you have a rough sense of how much it would

          9  cost the city to enforce these new --

         10                 MR. EILER:  We have not.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  --

         12  Requirements? You're working on that?

         13                 MR. EILER:  At this point it doesn't

         14  appear to have major measurable impact -- in terms

         15  of measurable impact on costs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  In your

         17  experience how much of burden does consumer

         18  protection laws place on the ability of debt

         19  collection agencies to conduct business in New York?

         20                 MR. EILER:  We really don't know.  I

         21  mean we haven't looked into that aspect of the

         22  situation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  These

         24  are some questions that we're going to obviously

         25  unfold at some point in time as we move along.
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          2                 MR. EILER:  We don't have any

          3  experience --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  I want to make

          5  sure that they're there so we know how to move

          6  forward.

          7                 MR. EILER:  See, we don't have any

          8  experience, we have no basis for gauging what it is.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Let's talk

         10  about the constituency now.  In dealing with the

         11  constituency, a typical parent, when you deal with

         12  them are they usually women.  As Chair of the

         13  Women's Issues, that's one of the reasons that

         14  sparked it, but really we were looking at the impact

         15  of this agency or this bill towards children as well

         16  as women.  When we talk about regulating this

         17  agency, has there been a connection to ACS as to

         18  what your agency is doing now and what ACS is doing

         19  now in terms of child enforcement?

         20                 MR. EILER:  No, we have no

         21  connections with that.  There's another -- there's a

         22  specific agency in the city that does that, that

         23  actually collects child support payments, that's

         24  public effort that goes into collecting those

         25  payments on behalf of people who are entitled to
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          2  them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Right, right.

          4                 MR. EILER:  We have nothing

          5  whatsoever to do with that, so I'm not in a position

          6  to comment on it.  I'm only looking at it from the

          7  standpoint of what our responsibility would be under

          8  this bill with respect to collection agencies

          9  fulfilling their role in the proper way. That's what

         10  we're looking at.  Obviously if they do it

         11  improperly it impacts on the people who are supposed

         12  to collect the support payments.  That's why we're

         13  trying to make sure that they act properly to

         14  minimize any negative impact on the individual

         15  people collecting child support payments.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  I think

         17  we're going to have at some point ACS to testify.

         18  Am I correct, to what their role is in terms of the

         19  detrimental effect. They testified at the first

         20  hearing but we really need to have at least more

         21  input in terms of what the universe we're looking at

         22  and we're glad that you're there.

         23                 I guess we'll take some questions

         24  now. Council Member Gentile, if you have a question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair and good morning.

          3                 I'm just curious.  It appears to me

          4  that whatever regulations New York City comes up

          5  with in consumer affairs, we still have a problem,

          6  it seems to me, with these internet accessible

          7  collection agencies that may be based in Texas, may

          8  be based in other areas of the country.  What type

          9  of regulation at this point with the New York City

         10  jurisdiction, what becomes of those collection

         11  agencies doing business here in New York City?

         12                 MR. EILER:  We're going to have to

         13  figure out exactly what it is that they do, how they

         14  relate to the jurisdiction that we can exercise over

         15  them.  I mean the internet is not just a matter --

         16  it's not just an issue in this context, it's an

         17  issue in all commercial transactions. This is no

         18  different, so we'll apply whatever we have under the

         19  current jurisdictional laws that we have to rope

         20  them in.

         21                 All I can say is that the way it

         22  works now is agencies who are based outside of New

         23  York for collections, we have a number of them that

         24  we have licensed.  So to the extent that it's

         25  possible, we'll treat these agencies the same way as
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          2  we treat the other collection agencies.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But that's a

          4  voluntary licensing, I would imagine.

          5                 MR. EILER:  Oh, no, that licensing is

          6   -- I mean it's not voluntary, they have to do it.

          7  I mean the internet creates its special problems

          8  because of the jurisdictional questions that arise.

          9  We're grappling with those all the time and it

         10  depends on how the transaction is structured and

         11  what they do and do forth and so on.  I can't give

         12  you the answer because this is a legal question that

         13  involves a whole lot of issues.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  It would

         15  seem to me, though, that if I'm a Texas based

         16  collection agency for child support and someone on

         17  the internet contracts with me from New York, what

         18  role here does Consumer Affairs --

         19                 MR. EILER:  It depends.  It's fact

         20  driven based upon how the transaction -- of what

         21  happens, how they do it, how they -- it just depends

         22  on what they do as to whether or not the actions

         23  they take with New York residents qualifies for us

         24  to have jurisdiction over their conduct. It will

         25  definitely depend.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Let me just

          3  ask, based on that question, what would happen,

          4  let's say come out of the realm of child support and

          5  I just remember telling my husband to call so people

          6  couldn't call me and harass me. Let's take it to the

          7  regular telephone.  Let's come from the internet for

          8  a moment.  And we call from the bus advertisement I

          9  saw and they continue to call me, what kind of

         10  jurisdiction do you have over any company that's

         11  does harassing phone calls.

         12                 MR. EILER:  Supposing a collection

         13  agency operating out of Texas reaches the person

         14  who's supposed to pay child support who's in South

         15  Carolina.  Do we have jurisdiction?  I'm not going

         16  to be able to say that we do or not.  I mean, it

         17  depends.  And that's the kind of issues because this

         18  stuff -- I mean the activity, if it's all in the

         19  City of New York, that's easy.  Once it gets beyond

         20  that, then it becomes a question of trying to figure

         21  out whether or not and how we can deal with it.  We

         22  will assert whatever jurisdiction we have, we'll do

         23  it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  The internet is

         25  tricky now but, again, what happens if it's a
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          2  regular, the Gentile Foundation forms a company and

          3  he is a telemarketer for nice suits and he's selling

          4  nice suits over the telephone and he's got

          5  everyone's telephone number in this audience today

          6  that we have here.  Obviously there are some

          7  stipulations and some regulations that you have

          8  about the marketing practices of the Gentile

          9  Foundation, am I not correct?

         10                 MR. EILER:  Yes, we have the broad

         11  Consumer Protection Law and depending on the

         12  business that he's in, yes there are other specifics

         13  that could apply to it.  As long as he's in New York

         14  City, everything is clear.  Once you get outside,

         15  then it becomes a question of exactly what activity

         16  it is and whether or not the activity brings it

         17  within our jurisdiction.  I mean I can't -- and

         18  that's the way it stacks up and I can't go beyond

         19  it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Let's assume

         21  the activity's in New York City and you have

         22  jurisdiction as you define jurisdiction, what are

         23  your enforcement powers on a company that operates

         24  out of state?

         25                 MR. EILER:  If they're in New York
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          2  City, then I --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  If they

          4  operate out of state but they contract with some New

          5  York City resident.

          6                 MR. EILER:  Then we can require them

          7  to -- well, jurisdiction in terms of exactly

          8  enforcement, but we can take them to court, we can

          9  enforce fines, we can seek to collect the fines.

         10  All the enforcement tools against anybody else we

         11  have.  It may be more difficult to employ them.  I

         12  mean that's a different issue because you have to

         13  have service, you have to have all sort of other

         14  things.  I mean I'm not going to say that it's easy

         15  but then you have tools for dealing with it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  In

         17  practicality, and we're talking about practicality

         18  and whether or not we can actually regulate these

         19  companies.

         20                 MR. EILER:  In practical terms, if

         21  somebody's operating on the internet out of state

         22  and all kinds of other things, there's no doubt that

         23  the enforceability and the ability to use all the

         24  tools available to us is diminished.  That it's not

         25   -- that's just the nature of the thing, that
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          2  there's -- you can't change that because they're not

          3  within our reach.  It becomes -- like one of the

          4  primary tools we have for unlicensed activity is to

          5  shutter the place, padlock.  Well, that's so -- a

          6  lot more difficult to do out of state, if even

          7  possible.  What I'm saying is there's -- in that

          8  sense you have -- there's a limitation to how

          9  effectively we can apply all the provisions of the

         10  law that we have.  I mean there's no doubt about

         11  that.  But that's -- we're not going to be able to

         12  change that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  It would

         14  seem to me that if we're imposing regulations for

         15  those who do business in New York City, based in New

         16  York City, the answer is not to be based in New York

         17  City.

         18                 MR. EILER:  Well, not necessarily

         19  because there are still some things that we may be

         20  able to do depending on what happens.  I can't give

         21  you a better answer.  I can't rephrase it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         23  Council Member.  We've also been joined by Council

         24  Member Kendall Stewart of Brooklyn.  Thank you for

         25  joining us.
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          2                 Andrew, we're beginning to at least

          3  focus some light on the issue of actually looking at

          4  child support agencies and we've been very grateful

          5  for your assistance. The legal staff has said you've

          6  been a wealth of information on this issue, although

          7  sometimes the information, it's a huge universe for

          8  us to deal with, but we're happy that we're making a

          9  major dent in this with this local law that we will

         10  be voting on today.  So I thank you, Andrew, and we

         11  will continue to call you as we begin to work on

         12  really fine tuning this.

         13                 Oh, Council Member Barron has a

         14  question?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Just a little

         16  clarification.  I think I'm clear on what you're

         17  saying, but basically if and when we pass this it'll

         18  give you jurisdiction on all the private companies

         19  within the state?

         20                 MR. EILER:  Well, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  And then the

         22  ones outside, depending upon their actions inside,

         23  the activities inside of the sate, then your

         24  jurisdiction will be activity based rather than

         25  organizational based or company based because of
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          2  their --

          3                 MR. EILER:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  --

          5  Awkwardness of being out of state.

          6                 MR. EILER:  I couldn't have said it

          7  better myself.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

          9  Council Member.

         10                 Council Member Stewart, any

         11  questions?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  That is

         13  exactly what Council Member Barron --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Oh, ditto.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  -- Was

         16  discussing there privately.  That was my only worry,

         17  that the companies that are outside of New York

         18  State that are trying to operate within but they're

         19  based outside, how we going deal with them in that

         20  concern?

         21                 MR. EILER:  We'll work on it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  Thank

         23  you very much for coming today.  We'll be in contact

         24  with you.

         25                 Next we'll have testimony from ACES.
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          2  Debbie Ecker will come forward.  She has also been a

          3  wealth of information to this committee in terms of

          4  shedding some light on exactly the ills of the child

          5  support industry and how it has affected families

          6  and children throughout.  Then we will hear from

          7  someone that has actually had this experience right

          8  after.  Debbie, welcome.  State your name and

          9  affiliation.  You press the button.

         10                 MS. ECKER:  Never done this before.

         11                 Good morning.  I'm Debbie Ecker.  I

         12  represent ACES.  I'm the New York City Coordinator

         13  of ACES.  I'm here today as the New York City

         14  Coordinator of ACES which is -- that's the short way

         15  to say Association for Children for Enforcement of

         16  Support.  I apologize that our State Council

         17  President Mary Tripp is not able to address you

         18  today as she was scheduled to do because of a family

         19  emergency.  I am representing ACES members and

         20  single parents in New York City.

         21                 We are here today in strong support

         22  of regulating private collection companies in New

         23  York City. ACES coordinators read the contracts some

         24  of our members have signed and we have yet to come

         25  across a single one that wasn't blatantly designed
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          2  with the intent to confuse the lay consumer.

          3                 These companies advertise on

          4  television, newspapers and have come into our homes

          5  through the internet with pop- up ads.  Our members

          6  have even found these pop- up ads on the New York

          7  State Child Support Enforcement website.

          8                 Some examples of reports that ACES

          9  has received about private collection companies are:

         10                 The private collection company

         11  collected payments from the non- custodial parent

         12  but never sent the payments to the family.  This is

         13  literally stealing money from children.

         14                 Private collection companies have

         15  closed down and totally disappeared after custodial

         16  parents have paid hundreds of dollars in application

         17  fees.

         18                 Private collectors take fees for

         19  money they have no part in collecting.  For example,

         20  private collection companies get paid by taking

         21  their 30% to 50% fee from IRS refunds that the state

         22  government's Child Support Collection Agency

         23  attaches.

         24                 Families that are owed support had to

         25  pay additional court costs and attorney's fees on
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          2  top of the 30 to 50% in fees taken from the child

          3  support collected.

          4                 Private companies' child support

          5  collection contracts define child support as arrears

          6  owed, current support and future support.

          7  Therefore, private collection companies collect 30%

          8  to 50% not just on arrears but on current and future

          9  support as well.

         10                 Contracts state that even if only $1

         11  is collected during the first year a custodial

         12  parent can never terminate the contract.

         13                 Private collection companies do not

         14  report that they have collected child support money

         15  to the state Child Support Collection Units.  They

         16  tell the non- custodial parent to pay them directly

         17  or change the custodial parent's address to their

         18  own address.  This causes problems because the state

         19  Support Collection Unit keeps track of money owed

         20  and money collected on behalf of custodial parents.

         21  When a non- custodial parent's payments are made to

         22  a private collection company, the state unit's

         23  records become inaccurate.  It will show that the

         24  non- custodial parent as owing more money than he or

         25  she actually owes.  This causes problems for both
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          2  parents.

          3                 It is wrong that children do not

          4  receive all the child support they are owed.  It is

          5  wrong that many children suffer at the hands of

          6  their own non- custodial parent when that parent

          7  fails to meet court ordered child support

          8  obligations.  It is wrong that deadbeat parents

          9  often get away with financially neglecting their

         10  children for years.  Children owed child support are

         11  among the poorest in New York City.  They need every

         12  single penny of child support owed to them.

         13                 It is even more wrong that private

         14  companies then prey upon and further harm children.

         15  It is not a case of half a loaf is better than none.

         16    Children are innocent victims.  They should be

         17  protected by our government and by society from

         18  greedy profiteers who literally make a profit off

         19  the suffering of our children.

         20                 In a few minutes you will hear from

         21  an ACES member who was caught in the web of such a

         22  contract, a contract that she signed not knowing

         23  about New York City's Child Support Enforcement Unit

         24  and the many powers it has to collect child support.

         25    A contract she signed not knowing that if New York

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  City collects any child support the private

          3  collection company would expect her to pay a 34% fee

          4  for each check she receives.  A contract that has no

          5  end.

          6                 We are here today to encourage you to

          7  vote to protect our city's consumers and our

          8  children.  Our children are already being victimized

          9  by their non- custodial parent who refuses to pay

         10  child support.  Don't allow them to be victimized

         11  again by losing 34% of child support collected to

         12  private profiteers because the children are seeking

         13  justice. It's just wrong.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Debbie, very

         15  interesting.  You said a couple of things that

         16  really sparked the interest of this committee.  The

         17  checks that are written to the family itself can

         18  actually be directed to the private company?

         19                 MS. ECKER:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Therefore

         21  allowing the person who's paying the child support-

         22  let's just say he's a male - it's not registered

         23  with the state so they can actually be jailed, they

         24  can actually still have money deducted from their

         25  paychecks, they still can go through the same trauma
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          2  as if they were not paying child support?

          3                 MS. ECKER:  That's correct.  Because

          4  the child support agency keeps track of this and so

          5  if the payments are being made directly to the

          6  parent or in this case to the child support

          7  collection -- the company, the private companies,

          8  then the state agency has no knowledge of that and

          9  is continuing to have on their records how much the

         10  person owes.  They're not using the credits.

         11  They're not recording the credits.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  SO that's

         13  excellent. So this bill in actuality would have the

         14  child support collection agencies connected with

         15  Consumer Protection so there would be a registration

         16  with the state so therefore the person paying the

         17  child support would not be hit twice based on it.

         18  So that's an excellent thing.

         19                 The 34%, that was astonishing.  There

         20  has been some cases that you have reported that 34%

         21  was taken from the mother itself or was charged on

         22  the entity paying the child support?

         23                 MS. ECKER:  In our cases, the mothers

         24  who were receiving child support payments directly

         25  to them, then from when Child Support Enforcement in
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          2  New York City started making the collections, when

          3  the companies, the private companies, got wind of

          4  that, they sent letters to the people saying you owe

          5  us this money.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  So it was

          7  actually taken out of the mouths of the children

          8  that the child support is supposed to go to.

          9                 MS. ECKER:  Absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Unbelievable.

         11                 MS. ECKER:  Absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Unbelievable.

         13                 You have really helped us drive this

         14  issue, you and Mary, Debbie, have been very

         15  instrumental in bringing some issues to light that

         16  we have found very instrumental in helping us move

         17  this forward.

         18                 Before we take a question for you,

         19  I'm just going to ask Ms. Stephanie to come forward.

         20    I ask that the cameras, I would like to ask that

         21  the cameras do not or the media do not show her face

         22  because she is right now, would like her privacy to

         23  be.  We're happy to have her here but we want to

         24  acknowledge that we are aware that she would not

         25  like her face shown.  So can we have Ms. Stephanie
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          2  come forward.  We ask the indulgence of the media.

          3  Thank you, Ms. Stephanie.  State your affiliation

          4  and your statement, please.

          5                 MS. STEPHANIE:  Yes.  Good morning.

          6  My name is Stephanie.  I'm a member of ACES in New

          7  York City.  Thank you for inviting me to speak

          8  today.

          9                 In 1985 I was divorced from my

         10  husband and our agreement said he was supposed to

         11  pay me $150 per week, $50 for each of my two

         12  children and $50 in spousal maintenance.  I never

         13  received a penny of the money.

         14                 A year later tragedy hit and I lost

         15  my baby daughter and grandmother in a house fire.

         16                 After years of trying to get my life

         17  back on track, I was faced with another tragedy.  On

         18  May 1st of 1997, I found out that I contracted HIV

         19  from a blood transfusion following surgery.  My

         20  health deteriorated and I was no longer able to

         21  work.  I did not know that there was another route

         22  to collecting child support owed for the previous 16

         23  years.  I saw an ad for a private collection agency

         24  based in Texas that advertised that they could

         25  collect child support. In desperation, in 2001 I
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          2  contacted this company and signed a contract with

          3  them.  The company sounded good.  I did not know I

          4  could go to my local IV-D's Child Support Collection

          5  Unit for collection.  This company never asked me if

          6  I did nor did they advise me that I could call this

          7  unit.  I did not even know that there was a county

          8  office called the IV-D Agency.  I didn't know they

          9  had a Child Support Enforcement Unit.

         10                 When I contacted the private company

         11  I desperately needed all arrears owed.  Before

         12  becoming ill I had been working three part- time

         13  jobs in addition to my full- time job as a New York

         14  City teacher.  After becoming ill my income was

         15  reduced from $60,000 to $15,000 I was getting in

         16  disability payments.

         17                 At the time, I didn't realize the

         18  magnitude of what I was doing when I signed the

         19  contract with the private collection agency.  I did

         20  not realize that this money would -- that this

         21  company would take 34% of each child support check I

         22  collected.  From 2001 to 2002 I received a total of

         23  $1,023 from this private collection company based in

         24  Texas.  Then the money stopped.  They couldn't find

         25  my ex's employer and had phoned him numerous times
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          2  to receive the money they collected.  It turns out

          3  they are just a company that will harass the non-

          4  custodial parent until they receive money.  At any

          5  time my ex- husband could have stopped paying them

          6  as he did.  Had I not sought more help I would have

          7  never receive another penny.

          8                 I found out about ACES, a child

          9  support advocacy organization, from a newspaper

         10  article in December 2002 and contacted them.  That's

         11  when I learned that the private collection company

         12  would get 34$ of my son's child support and my

         13  maintenance even if the State of New York collected

         14  the money, for example, through a wage attachment or

         15  an IRS refund check.

         16                 My son is in college.  I'm up to my

         17  eyeballs in debt and creditors are calling me.  The

         18  stress is unbelievable.  In addition, I come to

         19  Manhattan five days a week for treatment for my

         20  illness.

         21                 I wrote to this company asking them

         22  to release me from the contract before New York

         23  State Child Support Enforcement started collecting

         24  my child support and they refused to release me.

         25                 With ACES' support I filed a petition
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          2  in Family Court for a money judgment opened a case

          3  with the New York City Child Support Collection

          4  Unit.  They quickly put out a wage attachment and

          5  the unit has been collecting the support owed to my

          6  son.  However, the private collection company called

          7  me and informed me that I owed them money.

          8  This private collection company, which only

          9  collected a small fraction of the money owed to me,

         10  wants a commission from what New York City is doing.

         11    Should New York State collect all my arrears of

         12  over $90,000, this company would receive over

         13  $30,000 for doing nothing.

         14                 Please vote yes on this bill before

         15  you today so that other families will not suffer the

         16  way my family has suffered.  Families need to fully

         17  understand what they are signing, especially when it

         18  comes to their children's future.  I would like to

         19  see consumers and parents in New York educated and

         20  protected from these contracts.  I would like to see

         21  city and state laws passed so that all parents in

         22  New York are protected so any child support money

         23  that the state receives will only be turned over to

         24  the custodial parent.

         25                 After advocating with ACES and
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          2  speaking up, what a miracle was when I opened my

          3  mail on October 17th to find a letter from the

          4  private collection company stating that they are

          5  closing my case.  I believe that if it wasn't for

          6  this committee addressing this problem and inviting

          7  me to tell my story, I would never have been

          8  released from the contract.  I only wish these

          9  companies would release other parents from these

         10  contracts upon request.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you.

         12                 We are assuring that this bill would

         13  also have a clause that these companies, these

         14  predatory companies would first notify all

         15  participants that they do have rights within the

         16  city or the state so therefore you have options.  So

         17  that is part of -- that is a part of the legislation

         18  or local law that we are voting on today as well as

         19  a disclosure form.  So we are happy again to have

         20  you a part of this.

         21                 Council Member Stewart, you have a

         22  question?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes.  Thank

         24  you, Madam Chair.  I would like to know if there's

         25   -- who regulates these companies?  Is it the state
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          2  or the federal government regulates these companies?

          3                 MS. ECKER:  The private collection

          4  companies?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes.

          6                 MS. ECKER:  There's no regulation as

          7  far as I know.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  There's no

          9  regulation whatsoever.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  We're voting

         11  today. That's what the local --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I understand

         13  that this is at the city level, but I'm talking

         14  about -- we know that, for example, the check

         15  cashing place has regulations that the state

         16  regulates them.  This is like -- this is a

         17  collection agency.  There's got to be some state or

         18  federal, somebody ought to be regulating them.  I

         19  want to know, are there any state or federal laws

         20  that govern these companies?

         21                 MS. ECKER:  Not to my knowledge.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I think we

         23  should look into that also because it means then if

         24  there's no regulations they're charging exorbitant

         25  fees and something got to be wrong here.  I can't
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          2  see this as wild -- to me it's like a wild animal

          3  out there vulturing on innocent people.  We need to

          4  look to see if there are any laws on the books and

          5  if there's none, we will then look to the state and

          6  federal government that please for them to put some

          7  sort of regulations on these companies to stop them.

          8    Because 30 to 50%, you know, even the credit card,

          9  they have regulations and you can't go beyond

         10  certain things.  So I can't understand how -- and no

         11  credit card is up to 50%.  I can't see how they can

         12  be charging 30 to 50% of the money that it

         13  collected.

         14                 MS. ECKER:  I agree.  They're preying

         15  on the most vulnerable members of our society, poor

         16  women and their children.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  That's really

         18  part of the problem here.  There was a -- in the

         19  federal when the regulations were actually made for

         20  these companies, the child support industry, there

         21  was a loophole that put them sort of under it and

         22  this is where we're going to start with our local

         23  law and then, of course, take it to a higher court,

         24  Council Member.  That's right on time with the

         25  direction of where this legislation is going to
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          2  lead.

          3                 MS. ECKER:  We're also advocating on

          4  a state level for a state law so that's something

          5  you should know about.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Excellent,

          7  excellent. Council Member Barron?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just wanted

          9  to applaud you for your courage and tell you to

         10  continue your fight for justice.  I was very moved

         11  by your story and I hope this legislation will just

         12  bring, you know, a little more comfort to you and

         13  others who are in the same situation that you are.

         14                 STEPHANIE:  You just continue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You just

         16  continue to fight and you'll be in our prayers.

         17                 STEPHANIE:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         19  Council Member Barron.

         20                 As we move forward we're going to

         21  have one more person testify, but we're going to

         22  vote before that. We thank you, Ms. Stephanie, and

         23  of course -- oh, one more question.  Okay.  Council

         24  Member Gentile?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I'm just
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          2  curious, when you said that it's 30% fee on future

          3  child support collections, 30% of what, though, 30%

          4  of five years, 30% of ten years, 30% of what?

          5                 MS. ECKER:  Forever.  They lock

          6  people in forever and they collect 30 to 50% of

          7  whatever money they collect as long as the non-

          8  custodial parent is paying off past child support,

          9  that means arrears, current child support and future

         10  support that they may be owed, that the custodial

         11  parent may be owed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And that 30%

         13  on future is charged when?  When?

         14                 MS. ECKER:  As they collect.  In

         15  other words, as the years go by, if someone goes to

         16  a child support collection agency, when the child is

         17  ten years old and the non- custodial parent is

         18  ordered to pay through age 21 or more, depending

         19  upon the divorce agreement, they -- once the person

         20  signs this contract, once the custodial parents

         21  signs the contract, they are locked in for life

         22  until child support is completely paid off.  For

         23  years.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Now, I'm

         25  also curious, too, that once the IV- D agency gets
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          2  involved, ACS, or whatever the IV- D agency is in

          3  locality, if there has been no private agency

          4  contract there's no problem with the person.  But

          5  the problem is involved here where someone first

          6  goes to a private agency and then resorts to a IV- D

          7  agency, is that where Stephanie ran into that

          8  problem?

          9                 MS. ECKER:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And I'm just

         11  curious that -- how does the private agency know

         12  that, for example, New York City has taken over the

         13  payments and the enforcement aspect of it?

         14                 MS. STEPHANIE:  Through contacting

         15  the other parent.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  By

         17  contacting the other parent?

         18                 MS. STEPHANIE:  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And the

         20  other parent says, "Well, I'm paying, I'm paying it

         21  to New York City." That's how they find out.  I see.

         22                 I'm curious, if they have had no

         23  effort in collecting the money and it's New York

         24  City, the New York City's IV- D agency in New York

         25  City collecting the money, what basis do they have
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          2   -- I imagine they litigate.  If you don't pay them

          3  what they're owed they litigate that case against

          4  you to try and collect that money?

          5                 MS. STEPHANIE:  Well, they send you

          6  letters of harassment, phone calls.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But has

          8  there been any litigation of a parent, a custodial

          9  parent, to try, from one of these agencies, to try

         10  to collect whatever's owed them?

         11                 MS. ECKER:  I don't have that

         12  information to share with you today.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  It would

         14  seem to me that a litigation and presenting a case

         15  where they've done no work but just have a

         16  contractual agreement, and again I would imagine the

         17  contractual agreement would require them to do

         18  something in order to collect some money, it would

         19  seem to me that it wouldn't be a very strong case on

         20  the part of the collection agency.

         21                 MS. ECKER:  In some cases they have

         22  collected a very minimal amount.  Even if they

         23  collect a dollar, the people are then locked in for

         24  life.  So that's part of the problem.  In

         25  Stephanie's case she got a little over a thousand
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          2  dollars and then they stopped and then because of

          3  the way Child Support Enforcement in New York City

          4  has improved their outreach, their collection

          5  process, they were able to locate finally the

          6  parent, non- custodial parent. They were starting to

          7  collect.  What happens is that they now have new

          8  means, the Child Support Collection Agency has new

          9  means to collect that they didn't have in the past

         10  and so they're finding a lot more people that they

         11  were not able to find beforehand.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I'm curious

         13  because 20 years ago I worked in this field, in

         14  child support enforcement, and worked with, as part

         15  of the federal government, worked with New York City

         16  in their IV- D agency to try to improve the

         17  collection rates in New York City. I'm curious, what

         18  new tools do they have now that they didn't have

         19  before.

         20                 MS. ECKER:  Well, now there's a

         21  national registry for banks and financial

         22  institutions.  So that's one way that they can find

         23  some money if they report.  The national registry

         24  quarterly sends out a query and then they get a hit,

         25  then the money starts coming in to the custodial
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          2  parent.  They also have new laws now saying that if

          3  a new employer has to report, this certain way of

          4  reporting, who's working for them to the State

          5  Department of Labor, I guess it is, and so then they

          6  run it through the computer quarterly as well.  When

          7  they find that the custodial parent is now working

          8  an on- the- books job, they can then send out

          9  letters to the employer directly and attach the

         10  income.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And now

         12  that's the standard operating practice of ACS?

         13                 MS. ECKER:  This is now a -- national

         14  registries are now in place.  The federal law went

         15  into effect in the late '90s and we're finally

         16  starting to come into compliance in some areas.

         17  That's another fight we've been fighting.  We found

         18  that child support enforcement in New York City,

         19  we've developed a very good working relationship

         20  with them.  They are responsive to our queries. They

         21  just instituted the expedited process in Manhattan,

         22  in Queens.  Bronx and Brooklyn should be up and

         23  going before the end of the year.  So we're very

         24  pleased that they're being very responsive to our

         25  concerns, that they, in the past they may not have
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          2  been in compliance with federal law but they are

          3  bringing the city up to snuff very quickly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Stephanie,

          5  have you been satisfied with the New York City

          6  collection process?

          7                 STEPHANIE:  Very much so, very much

          8  so.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  That's good

         10  to hear. It wasn't always that way.

         11                 MS. ECKER:  No.  And that's why all

         12  of us became ACES members, 'cause there was a point

         13  in time where things were much more difficult.  It's

         14  partially -- it's child support enforcement

         15  collecting, what the court has said, and of course

         16  we have another issue which is for another hearing

         17  some day about what the courts need to do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Right.

         19                 MS. ECKER:  But as far as the Child

         20  Support Collection Agency's concerned, they are much

         21  more aggressively enforcing federal mandates now

         22  than ever before.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  That's good

         24  to hear.

         25                 Madam Chair, thank you very much.
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          2  Thank you. Thank you for coming today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Council Member

          4  Stewart, you have a follow- up question?  One more.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I have a

          6  follow- up question.  I was somewhat curious if

          7  there is a dispute and then you have an estranged

          8  parent paying to one of these agencies, an agreement

          9  was signed, what happens if they both make up and

         10  are now living together and they're back together

         11  after two or three years and they now living in the

         12  same home taking care of their kids and so on, what

         13  happens to that agreement?  Are they locked into the

         14  agreement for them to pay the money into the agency?

         15                 MS. ECKER:  You're talking about the

         16  private collection agency?   I think that -- I don't

         17  really know the answer.  I know that in general if

         18  two parents decide to reconcile, it's up to the

         19  custodial parent to make a decision whether or not

         20  he or she wants to continue enforcing the judgment

         21  to collect arrears.  That's a personal decision.

         22  Some people I believe foolishly decide to forgive

         23  and forget and then they get caught in the web if of

         24  it happening again and again.  But that's a very

         25  personal decision and we don't advise people what to
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          2  do.  We tell them what their rights are but we're

          3  not lawyers, we don't offer advice.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  But my

          5  question is whether the private agency gonna hold

          6  them still for life within that contract.

          7                 MS. ECKER:  I would assume yes, if

          8  they signed a contract, but I can't answer that for

          9  sure.  I don't know how -- I don't know of instances

         10  where that's happened.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  We just want to

         12  also mention that New York City does not charge --

         13  we're talking about the 34% interest rate on some of

         14  the collection agencies.  New York City has a zero.

         15  There's no fee whatsoever, so --

         16                 MS. ECKER:  That's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  -- When you

         18  talk about taking food out of the mouths of

         19  children, this is obviously the best route to go and

         20  we want to make sure that the collection agencies

         21  know that there has to be a notification stating

         22  that Ms. Stephanie could have gone the other way and

         23  now we want to make sure that we lead a pathway for

         24  other Ms. Stephanies down the road so they know.  We

         25  thank you both for coming today to testify and we
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          2  look forward to seeing you on Thursday as this

          3  becomes a local law.

          4                 MS. ECKER:  Thank you.

          5                 MS. STEPHANIE:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Now we're going

          7  to move forward with our vote as Ms. Caroline

          8  Kearney, our Legal Service of New York, comes

          9  forward.  We're going to vote first.  But before we

         10  vote, let me just give us some pointers, some

         11  statistics for my colleagues.

         12                 Even in our recent scrutiny of

         13  deadbeat dads this has become a big problem here in

         14  New York City and throughout the United States.  In

         15  2002 reports, the General Accounting Office revealed

         16  that the total amount of unpaid child support since

         17  1975 was at least $89 billion nationwide.  According

         18  to federal statistics the amount of child support

         19  owed nearly doubled in size from 45 billion to $89

         20  billion between fiscal year 1996 and 2000.  Here in

         21  New York State the total number of unpaid child

         22  support in fiscal year 2001 was $3.2 billion and it

         23  was 1.3 billion in fiscal year 2002, marking 116%

         24  increase since fiscal year of 1994.

         25                 In 2002 the amount of unpaid child
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          2  support that was collected in New York City reached

          3  $189 million, marking 134% increase over collection

          4  in 1994.  To help remedy this situation we've

          5  drafted, of course, Intro. 409 that would cap the

          6  amount that agencies are able to charge and for each

          7  child support payment received at more than 15%.

          8  Right now we have a situation that we're -- where

          9  hard working single parents are getting charged by

         10  private agencies for money that is already been

         11  collected by government and that is just wrong.

         12                 This bill is the right thing for New

         13  Yorkers and will help consumers, particularly hard

         14  working single parents that are vulnerable to these

         15  rip- off schemes, get a fair deal in the

         16  marketplace.  So I ask all your support on Intro.

         17  No. 409A.  Can we have the roll call?

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         19  Boyland.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I vote aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Barron.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Madam Chair,

         23  may I be excused to explain my vote?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Yes, you may.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I'm
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          2  definitely voting aye, but I also feel that we

          3  really have to work with the city agencies that do

          4  the public free collections because if that was done

          5  in a way that everybody knew, first of all, if it

          6  was exposed enough, there would be no need --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Exactly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- For

          9  families to deal with these companies at all.  I

         10  think we're doing a good job with this bill, at

         11  least bringing the -- capping it at 15%, whatever,

         12  but still for what they've done over the years in

         13  exploiting families, I think we need to put a great

         14  emphasis on not using these companies and making

         15  sure that the service that is provided by the city,

         16  that the city does it more efficiently and effective

         17  and it's free.  Then hopefully the city will get the

         18  word out that you don't even have to deal with these

         19  kinds of private agencies.

         20                 I vote aye and I commend you, Madam

         21  Chair, for the work that you've done on this.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Stewart.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  May I be
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          2  excused to explain my vote?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Yes, you may.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I feel that

          5  there's a lot that was missing and we ought to do

          6  more in the sense that these companies are coming

          7  into New York and exploiting the families.  They're

          8  exploiting the families by taking 30 to 50% of

          9  whatever they collect.  Someone being locked into a

         10  contract like this, I think it's a one- sided

         11  contract.  I think they should be able to

         12  discontinue on just a moment's notice and if they

         13  can get a better deal, if the city can do it

         14  themselves, I think they should be able to opt out

         15  at any time.

         16                 Even though I feel that we should be

         17  doing more, I feel there's no reason why we

         18  shouldn't vote for this bill.  We should all vote

         19  for this bill and make sure that it's passed and

         20  just not stay here.  We should seek to the state and

         21  see if the state has any sort of legislation to deal

         22  with this because it's statewide and also look into

         23  the federal government to see why is it that so much

         24  money is being owed to families.  You talk about

         25  billions of dollars being owed, I think this is a
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          2  way in which we can help some of the family and we

          3  should really look into that, to make sure that

          4  there's proper legislation to deal with this.

          5                 Based on that, Madam Chair, I vote

          6  aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Gentile.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Madam Chair,

         10  I proudly vote yes and thank you for your leadership

         11  on this issue.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  By a vote of

         14  four in the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         15  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council Members,

         16  please sign the committee report.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you.

         18  We'll leave the vote open for other Council members

         19  that would like to vote onto the bill.  I thank my

         20  colleagues for your support on that and I look

         21  forward to the stated meeting on Thursday and to

         22  working with you.  We have the Speaker which will do

         23  a press conference on the same issue.  I thank you

         24  all.

         25                 Next we have Caroline Kearney.
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          2  Please state your name and affiliation for the

          3  record and you may begin.

          4                 MS. KEARNEY:  Good morning and thank

          5  you.  My name is Caroline Kearney.  I'm the Family

          6  Law Coordinator for Legal Services for New York

          7  City, which is the largest provider of civil legal

          8  services to poor people in New York City.

          9                 Our clients, poor men and women, are

         10  people who are particularly vulnerable to the

         11  unscrupulous practices of the private child support

         12  collection companies and I'm thrilled that you voted

         13  for this bill because it's going to do very --

         14  really important things to protect people.

         15                 I support the bill for three reasons.

         16    One is, as Council Member Stewart highlighted

         17  earlier, there is no law right now that currently

         18  regulates these companies. The Federal Debt

         19  Collection Practices Act does not apply to child

         20  support because child support is not a commercial

         21  debt.  It's especially urgent that we do something

         22  now because these agencies are heavily lobbying the

         23  federal government to expand their powers despite,

         24  and with some success, despite repeated reports of

         25  their unfair practices.
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          2                 The methods that they use are

          3  shocking. You've heard quite a bit about that

          4  already and I apologize if I'm being repetitive, but

          5  we've heard things -- what's unusual about these

          6  companies is that it's not just the debtor who needs

          7  protection, it's the creditor who needs protection.

          8  Unlike say when a business is seeking money from a

          9  consumer, it's both sides that are being hurt here.

         10  Chairwoman Boyland mentioned earlier that

         11  grandparents are being affected by this.  They get

         12  phone calls from the agency saying, "If you don't

         13  give us your credit card numbers to pay this money,

         14  your son's going to jail." Children of second

         15  marriages are hurt by this because they get -- they

         16  pick up the phone when the agency is calling and

         17  they say, "If daddy doesn't pay we're going to take

         18  your house."  Employers are threatened with losses

         19  of their licenses if they don't turn the money over

         20  to these agencies.

         21                 Because these agencies often use

         22  names that make them sound like a governmental

         23  agency, their threats are very effective.

         24                 You've heard a lot about the

         25  excessive fees that are charged and you've heard
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          2  about the fact that there is no provision for

          3  cancellation of these contracts.  Ms. Ecker

          4  explained, I think, quite well that what happens

          5  here is that as money comes in, even if it's for a

          6  current payment, they credit it against the arrears

          7  so that the current payment is now deemed a missed

          8  payment so that there are always arrears so that the

          9  contract goes on forever.

         10                 There were some questions earlier

         11  about how does -- what happens when the state agency

         12  or the city agency starts collecting, how does the

         13  private agency know about it?  Well, one of the

         14  things they often do is ask their -- the person with

         15  whom they're contracting is to sign a change of

         16  address form.  They send that change of address form

         17  to the local IV- D agency saying, "Now any money you

         18  collect should be sent to this address."  And the

         19  address isn't the woman's address, it's the

         20  collection agency's address.  And that's how they're

         21  able to take out the fees for money that the

         22  government in fact collected.

         23                 The final point is that the

         24  government really is much more successful than these

         25  private companies in collecting.  This didn't used
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          2  to be the case, as Council Member Gentile mentioned,

          3  but in the last five years things have changed

          4  dramatically.

          5                 A study conducted by the GAO

          6  concluded that the private company's rates of

          7  collection are about the same and that the reasons

          8  for their failures are the same:  They can't find

          9  the non- custodial parent, the non- custodial parent

         10  has no income, the non- custodial parent is in jail.

         11  But New York City's Office of Child Support

         12  Enforcement now collects approximately 80% of

         13  current support and they've improved collecting the

         14  arrears really very dramatically.

         15                 Of course, parents should have an

         16  option if they wish to use these private companies,

         17  but the fees should be fair, there should be

         18  adequate disclosure, the parents should be informed

         19  of the existence and powers of the Office of Child

         20  Support Enforcement, as is provided for in this

         21  bill.  The companies should only be permitted to

         22  charge fees for the money they collect through their

         23  efforts and the contracts should be subject to

         24  cancellation.

         25                 I certainly agree that we need to do
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          2  a lot of effort on the federal and state level

          3  because of the limited jurisdiction of New York City

          4  and the internet problems and the out- of- state

          5  companies, but I think this is a really good

          6  beginning toward resolving these problems.

          7                 Council Member Barron has left but I

          8  wanted to say that he raised this issue of we ought

          9  to do something on the front end so that people

         10  don't turn to these companies in the first place and

         11  he raised this in May.  As a result of his

         12  suggestion, I've been working very hard to get

         13  information out to Legal Services offices and other

         14  people who represent poor people in divorces to give

         15  them the information about how you get the order

         16  paid through the Support Collection Unit in the

         17  first instance.  That happens almost automatically

         18  in Family Court but where divorces are heard, which

         19  is the Supreme Court, it doesn't happen

         20  automatically and the lawyer for the custodial

         21  parent really has to take some extra efforts.  I've

         22  been encouraging lawyers to do that.

         23                 I'm hoping to work on something even

         24  more systemic to make sure it's not up to the

         25  individual lawyer but that the court system itself
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          2  will make this easier.

          3                 One of the things that I think is

          4  missing from the current bill, and I hope will be

          5  added as time goes on, is that there is no

          6  prohibition on this practice of having a change of

          7  address form.  I'm concerned that this isn't going

          8  to entirely resolve the problem that we're

          9  addressing here.

         10                 Madam Chair, you mentioned that this

         11  bill will create a connection between Consumer

         12  Affairs and the Support Collection Unit.  I don't

         13  think it's really going to do that because there's

         14  no requirement -- I mean Consumer Affairs is now

         15  going to be able to regulate these companies but

         16  there's no requirement that the companies report to

         17  the Support Collection Unit about anything that they

         18  have collected.  So that there could still be a non-

         19  custodial parent who's being double charged and the

         20  only way that that would be worked out is if an

         21  action were brought against him in Family Court or

         22  if he went to Family Court to try to straighten it

         23  out and prove that he had made the other payments so

         24  that he wasn't double charged.

         25                 I wanted to respond to Council Member

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  Stewart's question about reconciliation, what would

          3  happen when the parents get back together.  The non-

          4  custodial parent in that situation should certainly

          5  go to court and petition to terminate the order of

          6  support so that there would be no order and nothing

          7  owed and nothing left to be collected, except there

          8  would be -- if there are past arrears, as Ms. Ecker

          9  mentioned, that would be up to the custodial parent

         10  whether she wanted to pursue those arrears or not.

         11                 Thank you very much for your work on

         12  this.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Caroline,

         14  you've been very informative.  Actually, we were

         15  just having the discussion about, as we talked about

         16  the agencies actually reporting to the city and the

         17  state that they're acknowledging that they're there

         18  to actually report how much money they're actually

         19   -- have been collected from the person and that

         20  excellent idea is the more you talk the more you're

         21  becoming brain food for us in terms of how we

         22  actually send some messages that there needs to be a

         23  major connection between what's happening out there.

         24     We still haven't gotten to the point where we're

         25  able to look at what the federal government is doing
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          2  in terms of the internet because a lot of this is

          3  actually happening over the internet.  So, again,

          4  that's more homework for us and BOCU (phonetic) will

          5  be working night and day and day and night to

          6  alleviate and answer all the questions that we have.

          7                 In the change of address piece, that

          8  was a major piece for us in terms of the agency's

          9  actually receiving the check.  That was astonishing

         10  to us that before we even got to the 34%, the

         11  exorbitant rate that they were charging, actually

         12  having the check sent to that agency is actually

         13  something that becomes very problematic for not only

         14  the person paying child support but the person

         15  receiving child support.  So all of your concerns

         16  and issues are definitely being addressed.

         17            As we move forward to try to unravel some

         18  of the things -- although we've made great strides,

         19  as Council Member Gentile has mentioned, in moving

         20  forward to the agency, the city and state actually

         21  being able to locate the persons paying child

         22  support, there's still lots more work to be done.

         23  We hope that the committee and your office can

         24  continue to move forward.

         25                 Let's talk a little bit about the
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          2  marketing, though.  You said something about the

          3  Legal Services, your offices, the lawyers themselves

          4  handed out -- there is a piece of material that you

          5  are now giving to people that come into your office

          6  or how does that work?

          7                 MS. ECKER:  No.  What I was saying

          8  was that what I've been encouraging our lawyers to

          9  do, who are representing parents in divorce cases,

         10  is to make sure that the order is payable in the

         11  first instance through the Support Collection Unit

         12  because typically in a divorce you will simply say,

         13   "Non- custodial parent will pay custodial parent X

         14  amount of money per week or month," and it's usually

         15  a direct payment to that parent.  But the parent,

         16  the custodial parent, can go actually to Family

         17  Court to get that modified to make the order payable

         18  through the Support Collection Unit.  But why have

         19  that extra step.  You know, if the lawyer -- if the

         20  Supreme Court orders it through the Support

         21  Collection Unit and then the lawyer fills out the

         22  necessary paperwork and shepherds it through the

         23  system, you can get that SCU, Support Collection

         24  Unit, account set up right away so that the arrears

         25  don't accrue and the parents aren't then subject,
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          2  you know, aren't vulnerable to these private

          3  companies because they'll have the city working for

          4  them from the beginning.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Excellent.

          6                 MS. ECKER:  Also, we do have a

          7  wonderful website called LawHelp that has community

          8  legal education information on it including a lot of

          9  information about child support so that is a

         10  mechanism that we are using to try to get directly

         11  to our client population which would include

         12  information about the Support Collection Unit.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  We'll actually

         14  move it. Council Member Stewart, you have a

         15  question?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  On the same

         17  line, of literature, I was wondering, why is it that

         18  we don't have the same type of format like L&T

         19  courts?  We have so much information as to let the

         20  tenants know what they can do, what their rights

         21  are, et cetera.  In the Family Court system, why

         22  couldn't we have that type of information for when

         23  an award is made or when payment is directed to be

         24  made?  Why is it that we can't have that information

         25  right there to tell them, "Listen, this is what you
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          2  can do"?

          3                 MS. ECKER:  I'm sorry.  In virtually

          4  every support case that's heard in the Family Court

          5  that information is available and in fact virtually

          6  all the orders entered by the Family Court are made

          7  payable through the IV- D Agency, through the

          8  Support Collection Unit.  The problem, I mean people

          9  kind of have to opt out of it almost. It's included

         10  in the form petition and so on.  The problem is more

         11  in the Supreme Court which is where divorces are

         12  heard, and that's where the effort needs to be made

         13  to get the information both to the clients and the

         14  lawyers and to the judges, actually.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.

         16  Caroline, again, we have a lot more work to do and

         17  BOCU will be working very closely with you as we

         18  begin to move into everyone's spare room so we can

         19  figure out exactly how to continue to do.  We're

         20  very grateful to you for giving us an ear or lending

         21  us an ear on this particular issue.  We look forward

         22  to working with you on the next local law we pass.

         23                 As we do this on Thursday, we want to

         24  begin to first bring awareness that this is

         25  occurring within the city as well as the fact that
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          2  there are other outlets that people can go to

          3  besides these companies.  At some point in time it

          4  will be revealed and we're working on some of these

          5  companies that have begun to do outrageous things.

          6  So we will work with you on that as well.  We look

          7  forward, Caroline, Debbie, Ms. Stephanie, to seeing

          8  you on Thursday as we begin to move forward.

          9                 Thank you very much for coming to the

         10  hearing today.

         11                 As we come to a close, we're going to

         12  leave the vote open as of now but as we stand we

         13  look forward to everyone joining us on Thursday as

         14  we move on alleviating all of the issues have in

         15  dealing with child support agencies.

         16                 We are now adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 11:24 a.m.)

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            61

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 31st day of October 2003.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

                                   ---------------------

         23                          PAT IARKOWSKI

         24

         25

                                                            62

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT IARKOWSKI

         23

         24

         25

